




















Highland City Council APPROVED Minutes ~ April 20, 2021 Page 14 of 25 

Council Member Scott L.  Smith No 

The motion passed 4:1.   

7. MINOR SUBDIVISION FINAL PLAT: HIGHLAND TOWN PLAZA
SUBDIVISION Administrative
The City Council will consider a request by Daniel Schmidt on behalf of WPI Enterprises,
Inc., for approval of a proposed 3-lot subdivision located at approximately 5513 West 11000
North.  The City Council will take appropriate action.

Planner & GIS Analyst Kellie Bronson stated that this was the last item for this development.  She explained that 
the request of the final plat for this subdivision encompassed what was in the red, and was three separate lots.  She 
further explained that they were simply making the current site plan approved into a lot and then planned to 
reorganize a bit.  Planner & GIS Analyst Kellie Bronson pointed out all three lots.  She stated that staff 
recommended that City Council accept the findings and approve the proposed plat with the included stipulations. 

Council Member Kim Rodela MOVED that the City Council accept the findings and APPROVE the Highland 
Town Plaza Subdivision plat subject to the four (4) following stipulations recommended by the Planning 
Commission and the additional two (2) following stipulations recommended by staff. 

1. The recorded plat conforms to the final plat date stamped March 1, 2021 except as modified by these
stipulations.

2. All public improvements shall be installed as required by the City Engineer and City Fire Marshall.
3. The civil construction plans shall meet all requirements as determined by the City Engineer.
4. Lot 1 shall be modified to exclude the City property if a purchase agreement is not approved by the

Council.
5. An easement be added over the water line to be moved to the east of Lot 1.
6. A fire hydrant to be added on the southeast corner of the building for access to the water line.

Council Member Timothy A. Ball SECONDED the motion. 

The vote was recorded as follows: 

Council Member Timothy A.  Ball Yes 
Council Member Brittney P.  Bills Yes 
Council Member Kurt Ostler Yes 
Council Member Kim Rodela Yes 
Council Member Scott L.  Smith Yes 

The motion passed 5:0.   

8. FINAL PLAT: TEN SEVEN HUNDRED (PREVIOUSLY APPLE CREEK)
Administrative
The City Council will consider a request by McKay Christensen for Final Plat approval of
Ten Seven Hundred, a proposed 42-lot attached single family subdivision with one parcel
for future commercial development. The City Council will take appropriate action.

Planner & GIS Analyst Kellie Bronson showed the vicinity map and final plat for Ten Seven Hundred, previously 
known as Apple Creek.  She clarified that the final plat was changed from before.  The commercial district was 
now two lots recorded to ensure they had the office pads on the plat.  She noted that the phasing had been a little 

ttannahill
Highlight



Highland City Council APPROVED Minutes ~ April 20, 2021 Page 15 of 25 

confusing.  She said that the developer had decided to put all of the residential construction in one phase, which 
would include brownstone parking, fire turn around emergency access, and parkway detail along Alpine Highway. 

Planner & GIS Analyst Kellie Bronson outlined that Phase 2 was commercial, and it included the Alpine Highway 
access and roads into the commercial district.  She stated that commercial was contingent upon tenants submitting 
site plans.  She informed them that McKay Christensen was present.  She said that staff recommended that City 
Council accept the findings and approve the final plat subject to the five stipulations. 

Council Member Scott L. Smith noted that there was a big difference in phasing from the preliminary plat 
approval.  He asked for the reasoning behind that.  McKay Christensen responded that it became a function of 
mobilization.  He said that the market was really good right now, and that they might as well put the road in. 

Council Member Scott L. Smith asked if the commercial was now pushed further down the road. 

McKay Christensen explained that the only adjustment being made was that they had originally broken up the 
residential into phases.  He said it was really only broken up into two phases instead of four.  He further said that 
if anything it would actually accelerate the commercial because they would be putting in all of the residential 
infrastructure.  He explained that one of the other reasons they had done that was because they realized they would 
have to loop the water system.  McKay Christensen visually showed where the original phases had been split, as 
well as everything that would go into the first phase now.  He reiterated that it would not slow down the 
commercial phase, rather it may accelerate the process.  

Council Member Kurt Ostler said that as the phasing changed, he had some safety concerns about the second 
access that was supposed to come in phase two.  McKay Christensen said that what they planned now was to do 
a temporary cul-de-sac which would facilitate fire, and he noted that the temporary turnaround met code.  

Council Member Scott L. Smith asked why they could not build it in.  McKay Christensen said cost.  He explained 
that rather than coming up and stopping, they would now carry all of the infrastructure on the front end while 
they went through and sold each one.  He communicated that it was like a revolving line of credit, and they would 
have to sell each home in order to pay off the improvements.  Council Member Scott L. Smith asked for 
clarification that they would not put the access to SR 74 until they did the commercial.  McKay Christensen 
confirmed. 

Planner & GIS Analyst Kellie Bronson noted that Chief Thompson did review the plans and asked that they had 
enough room for access and fire turnaround. 

Council Member Kurt Ostler asked City Engineer Todd Trane if there was concern with having 42 units and the 
cul-de-sac. 

City Engineer Todd Trane explained that they had done similar situations with temporary turnarounds.  He said 
that what they should probably do was build part of the asphalt parking area so they had a turnaround and make 
sure it was on the plat. 

Council Member Kurt Ostler asked if they needed to include the discussed topics in the motion if they approved 
something tonight.  Planner & GIS Analyst Kellie Bronson replied that they were stipulations in the staff report.  

Council Member Kurt Ostler asked if the plan was for two units.  McKay Christensen said yes.  He explained that 
each one was an individual lot.  He said that they had some that shared a common wall, but not any more than 
two units.  He stated that if possible they would prefer to do them all as free-standing and detached.  Planner & 



Highland City Council APPROVED Minutes ~ April 20, 2021 Page 16 of 25 

GIS Analyst Kellie Bronson said that the note on the plat and the stipulation was no more than two units 
attached.  Council Member Kurt Ostler asked if the two car garage was for a single unit or a shared garage. 

McKay Christensen answered that every unit had a two car garage plus an additional stall.  He said that this was 
exactly what was approved with the PD application, two car garages with ten extra stalls. 

Council Member Kim Rodela noted that had talked about timing with the parking on residential, and she asked if 
he had any concerns with doing all the residential at first and not having the parking. 

McKay Christensen said he did not anticipate it being an issue because they hoped that the absorption on the units 
was quick.  He noted that it could be 12-24 months before they absorbed all of the units.  He said that they had 
enough time and did not think that parking would be a problem when commercial came in.  He informed them 
that they had already started work in the commercial and that they had been working with tenants.  He noted that 
they did not want it to sit, and they were consistently working on it to make sure those concerns did not happen. 

Council Member Kurt Ostler asked if Marcia was still involved in it.  She was.  Council Member Kurt Ostler said 
he was curious about the design, and thought that the design of the garages was unique. 

McKay Christensen explained that they could have built over the garage, but did not want them to look like 90 
foot long milk cartons.  He said that if they built them straight back as a rectangle they would not have any 
variation in elevation.  He thought that this would break things up better so they did not have stacked blocks. 

Council Member Scott L. Smith expressed appreciation for McKay Christensen having worked hard to make this 
a project that worked for the City.  Council Member Scott L. Smith said that he had a hard time when the City 
attorney tells them that they had to improve, even if they did not necessarily want to.  Council Member Scott L. 
Smith further said that he had not heard anyone in the City yet who really liked the high density in the center of 
the town, and he noted that there were a lot of worries about traffic.  He expressed that he had a hard time because 
he was not always confident that they made the right decisions when looked at from the perspective of future 
ramifications.  People held the City Council responsible, but at the same time they did not really have a say in the 
matter.  Council Member Scott L. Smith expressed frustration with that, and reiterated that there was a lot of 
concern about density in the center of the City. 

McKay Christensen acknowledged that City Council was in a difficult position.  He said that as they developed, 
he hoped that people would recognize the major concessions that were made at the request and insistence of the 
City Council.  He also said that as they developed the open space and the quality of the development, each unit 
was anticipated to be 600-700K.  He said that it pushed the cost per square foot, and he felt that it helped the 
people in the immediate area.  He anticipated that people would feel a lot better about it after it was completed, 
and hoped they would recognize the quality. 

Council Member Scott L. Smith asked if the two homes on SR 74 would be demolished right at the start.  McKay 
Christensen said it was likely that they would be.  He said that they wanted the face of the project to project well 
from SR 74 as they began to develop. 

Council Member Kurt Ostler asked if there would be a master bedroom on the main floor.  McKay Christensen 
said yes.  He explained that there was a master on the main on one of the three.  He expressed that they tried to 
get all of the units with three bedrooms an office and sometime of vaulted space in the units themselves.  He said 
there would be an unfinished basement which would add another bedroom and rec room downstairs.  He 
communicated that the smallest unit started at about 2400 square feet, and the other units were about 2500 to 2600 
square feet.  With the basement they were at about 3400 to 3600 square feet. 



Highland City Council APPROVED Minutes ~ April 20, 2021 Page 17 of 25 

Council Member Kurt Ostler supported the large lots, and thought the variety was good and important.  He 
brought up some comments that had been made that called Highland elitist because they wanted large 
lots.  Council Member Kurt Ostler felt that this high density and open space would be beneficial, and he wanted 
to see the vision as it came forward. 

McKay Christensen commented that Highland had one of the highest median incomes in the state, and as the 
population aged they still wanted to stay.  They just needed a home on an easier lot. 

Council Member Kurt Ostler and McKay Christensen chatted briefly about housing costs. 

Council Member Brittney P. Bills asked if they had an obligation with the moderate income housing.  City 
Administrator/Community Development Director Nathan Crane said that they did their report last year and would 
do another one this year.  Council Member Kurt Ostler noted that the state had been focusing on accessory 
apartments. 

Council Member Kurt Ostler MOVED that the City Council accept the findings and APPROVE the Ten Seven 
Hundred final plat subject to the five (5) following stipulations recommended by staff. 

1. The final plat shall be in substantial conformance with the final plat received March 25, 2021.
2. The final plat and final civil engineering plans shall be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. The

site shall meet all requirements of the City Engineer.
3. All required public improvements shall be installed as required by the City Engineer and City Fire

Marshall.
4. For Parcel A—the commercial district—the parkway detail along Alpine Highway will be installed and

constructed as the units are constructed.
5. The parking for the brownstone units will be included in the recorded plat.

Council Member Kim Rodela SECONDED the motion. 

The vote was recorded as follows: 

Council Member Timothy A.  Ball Yes 
Council Member Brittney P.  Bills Yes 
Council Member Kurt Ostler Yes 
Council Member Kim Rodela Yes 
Council Member Scott L.  Smith Yes 

The motion passed 5:0.   

ttannahill
Highlight

ttannahill
Highlight








